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Preface
In my education career, I have been the victim of kangaroo courts and selective interpretation of eyewitness evidence.  Therefore, I know from personal experience that eyewitness testimony is not necessarily the most reliable and justice often serves the needs of the administration rather than the truth.  
I would like to think that I am impartial in regard for this.  I was a supporter of Bill Clinton when the bimbo eruption occurred in 1998 but one bimbo one too many proved too muchfor me to believe him not guilty of what was alleged against him, especially when he had to admit he did have sex with that woman.
I have finished taking notes on PBS Frontline Program of “The Great Divide: From Obama to Trump” (2020),The Education of Brett Kavanaugh: An Investigation by Robin Pogrebin and Kate Kelly, two Washington Post reportersof the liberal-leaning Washington Post(2019), and Justice on Trial: The Kavanaugh Confirmation and the Future of the Supreme Court (Washington, DC, 2019) by Mollie Hemingway, senior editor at The Federalist, a conservative blog, and Carrie Severino, chief counsel of the judicial Crisis Network, a conservative lobbying group. I have listened to some of the eight hours of testimony of Christine Blasey Fordand Brett Kavanaugh. I also listened to the speech of Senator Susan Collins. I also read Jodi Kanto and Megan Twohey, She Said: Breaking the Sexual Harassment Story that Helped Ignite a Movement (New York: Penguin Press, 2019) in which many of those that gave the book five star reviews felt that the section devoted to the accusations against Kavanaugh was not as well done or developed as the rest of the book and should been left out.  I am now ready to give my judgment on the Kavanaugh case.
Prologue
I remember seeingAdvise & Consent, a 1962 American political drama film based on the Pulitzer Prize-winning novel Advise and Consent by Allen Drury, published in 1959. The film was adapted for the screen by Wendell Mayes and was directed by Otto Preminger.Allen Drury was prescient in observing how politicians justify the means they use by the noble ends they intend to achieve.  Henry Fonda is nominated as Secretary of State by a dying president to bind the foreign policy of his successor.  He is too liberal for a senator played by Charles Laughton.  He digs up Burgess Meredith who alleges that Fonda belonged to a commie cell.  His testimony is disproved but things go downhill when a US Senator commits suicide because he will be outed as gay unless he votes a certain way.   In the end, the vote is a tie in which the vice president votes no because he has learned that the president has died, and he wants to appoint his own Secretary of State.  
Today, when a Supreme Court justice is nominated, he or she can expect the most outrageous things will be said about him or her while his family, his supporters, and senators who will vote for or against him will be harassed far beyond the bounds of decency. The more things change, the more they remain the same.
I also remember reading Up Country by Nelson DeMille.  A highly decorated officer is asked to assume an important executive position within the president’s administration.  Rumors swirl about that he may have committed war crimes while serving in Vietnam. Although he has regretted his action and made contrition, he still found out and is punished for his crimes.  
Thus, we have a real-life version of these novels in the case of Brett Kavanaugh, did he or did he not engage in a series of inappropriate sexual actions and assaults?

Who is Brett Kavanaugh

Brett Kavanaugh was an energetic, disciplined lad from grade school through Georgetown Prep, Yale University and Yale Law School who excelled academically and intellectually with a vigorous interest in sports (basketball and football) and a full social life.  He clerked for Supreme Court Justice Anthony Kennedy and fellowship with Solicitor General of the United States Kenneth Starr. Later, he was the principal author of the Starr Report to Congress in which he recommended President Bill Clinton should be impeached.

If you want to know what type of man Kavanaugh, you only need to go over his record in the Elián Gonzáleza case, in my opinion.  While in private practice, in 2000, Kavanaugh waspro bono counsel of record for relatives of  Elián Gonzáleza six-year-old rescued Cuban boy, who wanted to stop him from being repatriated back to his father in Cuba. Again, in private practice, he was part of George W. Bush’s legal team on the Florida ballot case. 

Kavanaugh then served President George W. Bush in various legal capacities, including White House Staff Secretary in which he coordinated all documents coming to and from the White House.  Kavanaugh worked on the unsuccessful nomination of Miguel Estrada  for the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. Estrada had been endorsed by both Democratic and Republicans alike. However, the Democrats did not want a Republican president to have the honor of President George  W. Bush to have appointed the first Hispanic or Latino to such position.  As a result,Kavanaugh had a preview of what he would face when he would be nominated for the US Supreme Court from his first-hand experience on the front lines to get a presidential nomination approved.
George W. Bush appointed Kavanaugh to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia in 2006. He and Garland Merrick, who would be nominated unsuccessfully to the US Supreme Court, served at the same time and the difference in their legal opinions was only 7 percent. It was from this office that  President Donald Trump plucked him as his choice as a US Supreme Court Associate Justice.
Prologue:  Ideological Hardening of the Arteries Prevented Compromise
Neither the Democrats or Republicans are more virtuous or villainous than the other.Depending upon your ideological point of view, the liberals, the progressives, the conservatives, etc. offer various solutions that you may prefer but they are legitimate points of view that should not be discounted as evil or good because of your ideology but how they solve a problem or are used to define a policy.
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Introduction
The PBS Frontline Program of “The Great Divide: From Obama to Trump” (2020) showed how the Republicans, articulating the conservative position, became the “party of no”for legislation proposed by President Barack Obama.The Democrats wanted partners and were willing to hear suggestions from the Republicans.  Unfortunately, the Republicans under the leadership of Senator Mitch McConnell and Representative Mike Pence, now the Vice President, were not interested.  Instead, they formulated the strategy of saying no to any legislation proposed by the president and the Democrats.  However, the Republicans became prisoners of their own strategy. Erik Cantor, the Republican Speaker of the House, was defeated in a primary because he had been willing to negotiate and compromise with the Democratsbecause he was not considered too moderate. 
Justice on Trial: The Kavanaugh Confirmation and the Future of the Supreme Court (Washington, DC, 2019) by Mollie Hemingway and Carrie Severino shows how the Democrats, articulating the liberal or progressive position, also became the “party of no” regarding nominations.  They were no longer willing to accept moderates but only liberals for the US Supreme Court.From day one, the Democrats made clear they did not want Judge Kavanaugh even before the hearings began.They also saw it as payback for Kavanaugh to take the seat they felt should have gone to Garland Merritt.
The Democrats seem to have made a specialty of being hoisted by their own petard. Senator Mitch McConnell warned that what goes around comes around.  The Democrats seemed to have believed that they would be in the majority forever. Therefore, when they screwed the Republicans, they never expected payback.  When the Democrats replaced the 60-majority rule for a mere majority approval for judicial nominations, the Republicans in power applied it to the filling the judicial positions with conservative nominees. The Democrats were not in a position to say what the Republicans were doing were unfair when they had been the first ones to do it.
Senators Chuck Schumer and Barack Obama declared that lame duck President George W. Bush should not fill any Supreme Court nomination in the last two years of his presidency.  They said the choice should be up to the next president, they never thought they would be the victims of their own policy.  When President Barack Obama proposed Merrick Garland to be his choice the Republicans quoted him back.  He said it was a big mistake on his part, but the Republicans simply refused to give Garland Merritt a hearing. Nor did they forget how Senator Obama had joined his fellow Democrats in filibustering Republican nominees. In their eyes, Obama was a hypocrite in declaring he wanted bipartisanship.
For the liberals and conservatives, how a prospective nominee may vote has become increasingly important.  Nominees have increasingly learned how to be close-lipped and neutral as possible in the hearings. According to both sets of authors of The Education of Max Kavanaugh and Justice on Trial, the difference in judicial decisions between Garland and Kavanaugh serving as justices in the same DC District Court of Appeals was only 7% but this was all important for ideologues.
Evaluating the Evidence
Eyewitness testimony is a potent form of evidence for convicting the accused, but it is subject to unconscious memory distortions and biases even among the most confident of witnesses. So,memory can be remarkably accurate or remarkably inaccurate.Eyewitnesses statements often play a vital role in securing criminal convictions – police surveys show that eyewitness testimony is the main form of evidence in more than 20% of cases in the United Kingdom. But that doesn't mean the evidence is always reliable.Miscarriages of justice can occur more often than television documentaries would have us believe – across a variety of crimes.Surveys of cases involving sex crimes show false reports in various jurisdictions in the United States range from 2% to 10%.  I had a friend who was a NYPD detective who specialized in sex crimes that in his anecdotal, personal experience it was more like 25%.  All this means, you simply can’t take eye-witness testimony at face value, but it must be examined with care and rigor like any other type of evidence.
I know from personal experience that eyewitness testimony can be unreliable.  I have been the victim of assault twice. I could not accurately describe my assailants or pick them out of a photo array.  I was assaulted by a loon in Forest Hills Subway Station in November 2019 who nicked me with a pen knife of some kind.  Ten years ago, a looninside my building cellar hit me on the forehead with a hammer. 
On the other hand, I was a very good eyewitness in a school hearing in my first semester of teaching high school in the spring of 1982.  I was summoned to a hearing at the Queens Superintendent’s Office.  The mother hired a lawyer to present her daughter’s side of the hearing.  The lawyer asked, “How do you know my client attacked you?”  I replied, “There was a cane around my leg;There was a hand around the cane;  The hand was that of your client.”Her punishment was to become a road scholar once more.  She was ordered transferred to another school. Thirty-eight years later, the other details have become kind of fuzzy over time.
All I am simply pointing out that you just can’t take somebody’s word or sincerity for it no matter how impassioned they are.  Remember how Bill Clinton declared, “I did not have sexual relations with that woman.”  Unfortunately for him, Monica Lewinsky kept her semen-stained blue dress that could be tested for Bill Clinton’s DNA.  Sincerity is no substitute for veracity.
Then there is the classic “Twelve Angry Men” in which Henry Fonda questioned the circumstantial, eyewitness, and forensic evidence as well as the assumptions and prejudices of his fellow jurors. Crime scene technology has improved.  For example, personal body cams that record both sound and video often shed a more accurate and impartial light than eyewitness testimony.  We now have DNA evidence to identify people even decades later to solve cold cases.
American Blog 83The Case of the People Vs. Brett Kavanaugh Case Revisited © 2020 by Dr. Philip Ernest Schoenberg
We are now in the age of #MeToo where Hillary Clinton says we should believe a woman unless it applies to her husband.  We have gone from one extreme to another, from where a woman had a very hard time reporting, let alone pressing charges, to the accused is automatically guilty and we have no need to bother with such a silly thing as a trial to assess the evidence.  We have gone from presumption of innocence to the presumption of guilt where the accuser does not have to prove the charges, but the accused must clear himself.Nicole Weisensee Egan chronicles in Chasing Cosby: The Downfall of America's Dadhow Bill Cosby was a sexual predator for decades.  He was enabled by his wholesome reputation as “America’s Dad,” “Dr. Huxtable,” and the “Jell-O Man,” a squad of lawyers, and his wealth to sexually assault women with date drugs for decades. For Jodi Kanto and Megan Twohey,  the authors of She Said: Breaking the Sexual Harassment Story that Helped Ignite a Movement, it would have been a crowning achievement to have prevented the nomination of Brett Kavanaugh.  They claimed they had launched the #MeToo movement with the exposure of Brett Kavanaugh although I would the credit to Ronan Farrow as the true originator of the movement.
My own observation is that sexual predators cannot help themselves no matter what the personal cost for themselves.  My own Congressman Anthony Weiner is a case in point.  He was exposed three times:  lost his job as a Congressman the first time, lost his marriage the second time, and then lost custody of his child and received jail the third time.  Apparently, he has learned his lesson the third time after being in jail.  Nevertheless, he was still made the news for the fourth time when it was discovered that Hillary Clinton’s private emails were found on his electronic devices because his wife worked for Hillary Clinton.  Some of her supporters thought this untimely expose cost her the election.
About twenty years ago, I was elected secretary of ATSS (Association of Teachers of Social Studies of NYC) and Omar Ayed was elected the president.  We were inaugurated in June.  In September, we were told he had stepped down and a few months later we were told he was cleared of various charges but were not told what they were.  Then in July 2001, he made the New York Times. Edward F. Stancik, the noted investigator for the New York Board of Education, charged him as a sexual predator.  He had become a social studies chair for the third time at A. Philip Randolph High School in Harlem.  He liked to look up the skirts of both women teachers and girl students as well as things.  Stancik reported he had beaten the rap twice before but not of these experiences had deterred him from continuing these activities. One would think after such close calls he would have sought medical help or stopped.
The greatest cold case of sexual assault of all time, in my opinion, is the story of Thomas Jefferson messing around with Sally Hemings, his enslaved love interest. She had no say in the matter except she was able to negotiate a devil’s bargain that their children would be emancipated.  For over two hundred years, his biographers and historians, kept his dark secret well-hidden. When James T. Callendar outed Jefferson for miscegenation, he was dismissed as a disgruntled operative of Jefferson.  The stories of his alleged descendants were dismissed as wistful dreams and slanders.
The rumors did not quite go away because there was no other explanation of why Jefferson chose to emancipate five slaves that had connections with Sally Hemings except that they were of blood.  However, the evidence began to mount as the Founding Fathers were no longer regarded as saints.  Revisionists pointed out that various visitors to Monticello as well as elsewhere noticed the family resemblance of some of his slaves serving as personal servants.  Although John Adams had been slandered by Thomas Jefferson in the elections of 1796 and 1800, he did not share his observations that his frenemy had slave servants that resembled him.  Revisionist historians noted that only Jefferson’s presence at the time that Sally Hemings conceived her children was a match compared to all other male relatives. As the DNA evidence mounted, other relatives were eventually excluded.  Today the white descendants of Thomas Jefferson recognize the bl ack descendants of Thomas Jefferson.   The historical and forensic evidence is clear that our third president was a pedophile who repeatedly forced an underage teenager to have sex with him.
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Dr. Christine Blasey Ford’s Choices
What were Dr. Ford’s choices as the accuser?

1) If we accepted that Dr. Christine Blasey Ford had been assaulted back then, she might have had a difficult time pressing charges at the time.  There was the immense shame that the victim face, the fear of how people will perceive the victim, the feeling boys will be boys, and she deserved it because of her behavior. There was no concept back then that a woman’s “no” was really a “no”.  Kavanaugh came from a more elite family while she had a more modest background.  An investigation might have revealed that she was under alcoholic influence that might have weakened her credibility as to what had happened.  
2) Coming forward after thirty-five years or so took courage on her part.  Her life had been sundered by that experience.  By testifying against Kavanaugh, she could complete her healing and make a monster pay for the evil he had doneher.
Ford needed to achieve closure and healing as well as to bring to justice by facing the person that had assaulted her.
Justice Brett Kavanaugh’s Choices

What were Justice Kavanaugh’s choices as the accused?

1) Kavanaugh could have chosen not to fight back.  Roger Ailes and Bill O’Reilly of Fox News, Charlie Rose and Tavis Smiley of PBS, and Matt Lauer of NBC Morgan Freedman, Roman Polanski, and Harvey Weinstein of Hollywood, Kevin Spacey of Netflix, U. S. Senator Al Franken, Leonard Lopate of NPR, Steve Wynn of Las Vegas, New York State Attorney-General Erik Schneiderman, Garrison Keillor of Minnesota Public Radio, Chef Mario Batali, and Placido Domingo of opera fame all took falls on sexual harassment charges in recent years.  A series of women that came forward in each instance or one too many legal settlements drew attention to these sexual predators.  Although many proclaimed their innocence, they chose not to use their financial resources to fight back. For almost all of them, their careers came to an end.Considering their experiences, Justice Kavanaugh’s legal career would have come to an end.Pressure would have mounted to have Judge Kavanaugh to have resigned from his position on the DC Court of Appeals.  It would be almost impossible for him to have an academic career.  Finding work in the private sector would have been problematical. His life would have been turned up down.
2) On the other hand, fighting back has had mixed results.  Celine Deon’s husband was cleared of charges of inappropriate sexual conduct and his accuser convicted of trying to blackmail him on false charges.  John Travolta’s had very good attorneys who indicated they were willing to go to trial and the legal representatives would be sued once he was cleared.  If you are a Bill Clinton or Hillary Clinton supporter, you agree with him that he had consensual sex.  If you are not , and you are peeved that Hillary Clinton lost the 2016 election, then you no longer believe his side of the story.  He was sued by several women.  Without admitting fault, his supporters paid for their silence.Bill Cosby, Jeff Epstein, and Harvey Weinstein had immense fortunes in the hundreds of millions of dollars that could not spare them from the consequences of their actions.
In the end Kavanaugh had no choice.  He to fight to protect his future, his honor, his right to earn a living and his reputation.
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Round One:  The Main Event

Like Anita Hill and Clarence Thomas, Christine Blasey Ford and Brett Kavanaugh seemed to be another he said/she said in the Senate Judiciary Committee hearings.  She swore he had assaulted her, and Brett Kavanaugh swore that he had not. For this part of the essay, I gained some further insight by reading, “Christine Blasey Ford, America’s Reluctant Star Witness,” by Courtney Weaver, Financial Times (28 September 2018) https://www.ft.com/content/3d68df2c-c274-11e8-95b1-d36dfef1b89a
Just as there had been a leak of alleged sexual impropriety by Clarence Thomas from within the Senate Committee in 1991, there was a leak of alleged sexual impropriety by Brett Kavanaugh in 2018.  In both instances, the supporters of the accusations went to great lengths to spread the word of what had happened. At the same time,they were doing their best to avoid getting the accusations investigated, questioned or vetted by the Senate or outside federal agencies.  The accuser was supposedly still too traumatized to really come forward but after much hue and cry and aguish, they reluctantly stepped forward.

After the Senate Judiciary Committee hearings on Brett Kavanaugh to be an Associate Supreme Court Justice came to end, a leak in the news appeared that he had sexually assaulted someone. Democratic Senator Dianne Feinstein came forward to reveal that she had sat on Dr. Christine Blasey Ford’s accusatory letter for weeks, but denied she was the source of the leak.  Apparently, did a staff member with or without the senator’s consent (wink, wink) reveal the accusation? 
Or could it have beensimply Christine Blasey Ford and her lawyer Debra Katz contacting various journalists from The New York Times or the Washington Posttrying to get Kavanaugh investigated without getting her name dragged into the investigation.  She was ably represented by Debra Katz, a DC lawyer specializing in sexual harassment. This is my take from Jodi Kanto and Megan Twohey, She Said: Breaking the Sexual Harassment Story that Helped Ignite a Movement (New York: Penguin Press, 2019), pages 188-190, 197, 216.
Ford was alleged to be very reluctant to testify. Some folks said her word should be good enough and she should not be embarrassed by being forced to testify.  Kavanaugh should simply be dropped from consideration to spare the accuser of the ordeal of re-living her trauma.  Democratic Senator Richard Blumenthal declared Kavanaugh should withdraw because of these charges were too damaging for him still to be considered.

When the Senate Judiciary Committee approached Ford, she kept on putting roadblocks on why she could not come to the hearing or setting pre-conditions before she would testify.  She wanted the FBI to investigate first, but the FBI said they had finished their background checks. The Senate Republican Committee refused her request that Kavanaugh, the accused, should go firstbefore the accuser!  This ploy at sympathy did not work.  Ford claimed she had a phobia of flying. However, the committee said it was ready to come to her.  Finally, she agreed to come after a series of constant delays caused by her incessant demands.
“The coverage of the Christine Blasey Ford allegations and getting her to talk to the Senate glosses over the negotiations between her lawyers and the committee (which would present Ford and her attorneys in a negative light) leaving the impression that Republicans were being unreasonable for not putting everything on hold for an indeterminate length of time to ‘investigate’ the allegations.” (ThomasW “Informative and fairly even handed but still an anti-Kavanaugh Slant” review in Amazon.com 3 November 2019 https://www.amazon.com/product-reviews/059308439X/ref=cm_cr_unknown?ie=UTF8&filterByStar=four_star&reviewerType=all_reviews&pageNumber=1#reviews-filter-bar
Dr. Christine Blasey Ford testified before the Senate Judiciary Committee on September 27, 2018, flanked by her lawyers. She claimed she had been sexually assaulted by a drunken high school student Brett Kavanaugh, with the help of a friend, at a party.  She claimed four of her friends could support her story.   Brett Kavanaugh responded forcefully that it never happened.The hearings lasted more than eight hoursas Ford and Kavanaugh told and retold their stories.  Each Senator had five minutes to ask questions. Democratic and Republicans alternated. The Democratic senators either asked her softball questions or praised her heroism for coming before the committee.
In contrast to the 1991 Anita Hill-Clarence Thomas faceoff, the Republican senators delegated each of their five minutes to professional female prosecutor.  Publicly, the Republican Senators never doubted her claims except for the identity of the accused.  Rachel Mitchell, a sex crimes prosecutor, a Republican was no Pitbull.  As a professional she had trained other prosecutors, police officers, medical personnel, and other first responders on how to handle such cases. Mitchell did not directly challenge Ford but let her hang herself with inconsistencies and insufficiencies of her testimony. For example, she claimed that Kavanaugh and his friends were wearing Georgetown Prep school uniforms, but the private school has never had uniforms but a dress code. 
Decades after the incident, Christine Blasey Ford’s recollections of the details were fuzzy at best, which kept on shifting, including who was involved, how it took place, and where it took place. She also refused to let the Senate look at the notes she made when in 2012 she consulted a therapist supposedly about the Kavanaugh incident that she used to refresh her memory.  
The timeline kept on shifting which might have been aided by Kavanaugh’s buddy MarkJudge's 1997 book Wasted: Tales of a Gen X Drunk.If she was driven home, no one came forward to say so. Mitchell explained her story had some veracity, that she indeed had suffered a sexual assault of some kind, but Kavanaugh was not the perpetrator.However,Rachel Mitchell, in her assessment of what she elicited, informed the Republican Senators that the accuser’s story did not have enough consistency or corroboration to obtain a search warrant, much less to prosecute. 
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The lawyers helping Ford pro bono helped to packager her before the committee. She went from her using her maiden name of Ms. Christine Blasey to becoming Dr. Christine Blasey Ford. They tried to present her as a concerned citizen, a non-partisan.  However, Ford cleaned up her social media accounts where she had ranted against Trump and leaned to the left according to her friends in Justice on Trial.  Thus, she was not exactly a non-partisan or a moderate but leaned really toward the left. 
Blasey’s supporters claimed she passed a lie detector test that proved she was telling the truth.  But there is a good reason why lie detectors are not admitted into courts of law because they are not considered reliable.  Moreover, it was revealed she took the lie detector test after the death and funeral of her grandmother in which such an emotional experience impacts upon how reliable on the testimony solicited.Like Anita Hill before her, Ford may have been the victim of a real incident but imposed it on a Supreme Court nominee with whose opinions she disagreed.
Part of the drama, contrived or not, was whether Ford would show up for the hearings  Ford had claimed she had a phobia against flying which created her initial reluctance to fly to Washington, DC. Under questioning by l Mitchell, a prosecutor who questioned her on behalf of the Republican senators on the Judiciary Committee, Ford admitted that this phobia had not prevented her from traveling either on business or for pleasure. 
Ford claimed she had four eyewitnesses that were at the party at the time of the assaults, but they were unable to corroborate her account. One of the supposed witnesses had actively campaigned against Trump and Kavanaugh, but she refused to change her initial negative answer that she had not witnessed anything. 
However, Brett Kavanaugh had a detailed calendar of what he did every day to aid his recollections.  His calendar could be examined and verified while Ford refused to let the notes, she was using to refresh her recollections to be examined.  
Brett Kavanaugh under oath, declared  although “I love beer,” he still  no longer drank excess in his youth.  Mark Judge, a boon companion of his youth, in one of his two memoirs that he wrote to combat his problem of alcoholism wrote of a ‘”O’Kavanaugh” being in cups.  So Kavanaugh could have been in alcoholic-daze of his own making impairing his memory and his ability to control himself.
Meanwhile, no less than seventy-five women, of various ideological strains, that knew Kavanaugh from high school whether as classmates, dates, or friends signed a letter that they spontaneously sent to theSenate Judiciary Committee saying Kavanaugh had been a good date, a good friend and above-average gentleman toward the opposite sex.The female interns that had workedin Judge Kavanaugh District of Columbia Office over the years actively worked together to support his nomination.  This contrasted to the four women that Ford claimed supported her version of events.
Supporters of Ford claimed that Kavanaugh’s wife did not really stand behind him while Kavanaugh’s supporters claimed that Ford’s family did not really stand behind her.
Ford spoke passion on how Kavanaugh had wronged her while Kavanaugh defended himself with passion. The supporters of Ford said she was more sincere and Kavanaugh was insincere and defenders of Kavanaugh declared the reverse.
Lobbying for and against the Kavanaugh Nomination

When Yale University proudly announced that yet anotherYale University School of Law graduate, Brett Kavanaugh, to be added to those Yalies on the bench ranging from the conservative Clarence Thomas to the moderate conservative Samuel Alito to the liberal Sonia Sotomayor, the students and faculty of the law school staged a sit-in in protest.  They were ashamed that such a conservative was suggested as worthy of the US Supreme Court.
More than three hundred liberal groups lobbied against the nomination of Kavanaugh while more than one hundred conservative groups lobbied for the nomination of Kavanaugh.  Lobbyists and demonstrators were ready to fill in the blanks on their faxes, petitions, and signs.  In an eager rush even before Trump made known his choice, they put in the wrong name or failed to fill in the blanks!  One had the feeling that even if Jesus of Nazareth had been nominated, the liberals would have been able to find fault and would have spread rumors of his womanizing with Mary Magdalen, a fallen woman, and Joseph was not his real father.
The Federalist Society in place of the American Bar Association emerged as a key player that provided lists of suitable conservatives for Supreme Court nominations. During the 2016 election, Donald Trump promised he would consult that list and he did. Although the American Bar Association claimed to be nonpartisan, conservatives claimed it tended to give slightly higher ratings to liberals than to conservatives.
A few years before the Kavanaugh nomination, the Judiciary Committee initiateda process where senators from the entire Senate body could submit written questions to the nominee and any other witnesses to be answered by them.  Whereas the previous nominees had been asked a few questions, Kavanaugh was asked over twelve hundred questions.  With the help of a computer, the White House team and the Senate team handling his nomination were able to compile answers within three days with the results edited by Kavanagh.One could readily conclude the Democrats did not ask the questions in good faith and were intent on wearing down the nominee. Their efforts at filibustering within and without the committee were also stopped. The Democrats wanted endless investigations by FBI as well as by the committee to investigate every new allegation against Kavanaugh.In the end, there were over fifty accusers came forward!  Republican Senator Thom Tillis of North Carolina doubted their sincerity because they would not participate in following through.  https://www.realclearpolitics.com/video/2018/09/27/sen_tillis_on_playbook_against_kavanaugh_future.html
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Round Two:  The Next Challenger
Efforts were made to portray Judge Kavanaugh as a repeat offender when Deborah Ramirez came forward and Michael Avenatti, a California lawyer, claimed to have two clients that were victims. Jodi Kanto and Megan Twohey, She Said: Breaking the Sexual Harassment Story that Helped Ignite a Movement (New York: Penguin Press, 2019), page 225
Next up was Deborah Ramirez who timed her big reveal after the Kavanaugh hearings came to an end for second time.  The opponents of the Kavanaugh nomination claimed foul that the Senate Judiciary Committee would reconvene once more to hear another accuser.  Instead, Deborah Ramirez’s story was tried in the pressin which she enjoyed a field day until her version of events was found wanting.

In the opening offensive, Deborah Ramirez issued a statement through her lawyers that she had been denied the opportunity to give her story. The Democrats wanted her before the committee while the Republicans did not. She alleged that a drunken Kavanaugh had exposed himself to her while an undergraduate at Yale University. 
However, her details were even fuzzier and more contradictory than Ford's eyewitness testimony under oath. Ramirez claimed she had a far better memory than Kavanaugh and his friends because she only had one drink. However, people who knew in her at Yale University contradicted her self-serving claims. They declared that she loved to party and drink to excess so she was sometimes drunk.  ABC News doing due diligence found that the four witnesses she claimed that could back her story were dead, could not be contacted, or were not there.Reporters of The New York Times in doing due diligence interviewed dozens of  former clasmates and hallmates.  They found no one that could verify her story on a first hand basis.  Although the published the accusation, they did not do it as a standalone piece of journalism. Jodi Kanto and Megan Twohey, She Said: Breaking the Sexual Harassment Story that Helped Ignite a Movement (New York: Penguin Press, 2019), page 227.
Round Three:  Still More 
Michael Avenatti, a lawyer, was hailed as a hero when claimed he had two women ready to testify before the Senate Committee. However, both claims were revealed as hoaxes. Since then, Avenatti was found guilty of trying to extort millions of dollars in a federal court of law in February2020.Avenatti’s allegations of gang rape by the Judge Kavanaugh did not stand up.  
Still more women came out of the woodwork to claim that Kavanaugh had been less than a gentleman, in descending their stories had even less credibility’  In the end, all the claims by these other women further undermined the credibility of Ford.Jodi Kanto and Megan Twohey, She Said: Breaking the Sexual Harassment Story that Helped Ignite a Movement (New York: Penguin Press, 2019), pages 227-228
Round Four:  The Knockout Punch that Wasn’t
Continuing the tradition of hearings involving Clarence Thomas were the efforts to continue to smear Brett Kavanaugh after he was confirmed that he posed a threat to women and he was incompetent. Following the Clarence Thomas hearings, in the mid-term election in 1992 saw the addition of twenty women to the House and four to the Senate in a supposed reaction to Clarence Thomas’s sexism. The opponents of Kavanaugh not only hoped to knock him out for consideration to benefit in the 2018 election.  Instead, the Republicans improved their hold on the Senate by gaining two more votes, going from 52-48 to 54-46.
The Education of Brett Kavanaugh: An Investigation by Robin Pogrebin and KateKelly, two Washington Post reporters, despite their best efforts, were unable to find any evidence other than the accusations of Dr. Christine Blasey Ford in high school and Deborah Ramirez in college that Brett Kavanaugh had sexually assaulted the former and exposed himself to the latter. In their eyes, the clever, devious, and wily Kavanaugh had become a better person after that so that is why there is no more evidence against him! They ignore that besides his word, he kept a written calendar of what he did every day. They ignore the support that the women who knew him in high school, college, and professionally supported him spontaneously in his hour of need. The Washington Postreporters wanted their readers to take the accusations of Ford and Ramirez at face value. They omit any mention of the notes Ford made while consulting a therapist about incident which then used to refresh her memory.  Pogrebin and Kelly found no smoking gun, no damning evidence, other than their gut feelings to make their case against him.In their eyes, he is forever damned as a sexually predator and still must prove innocence.  They relentlessly argue, “I believe.”  They demand that Brett Kavanaugh be removed from the bench, a relentless campaign that continues.  Although both Clarence Thomas and Brett Kavanaugh became Supreme Court Justice, their opponents continued to smear them as sexual predators
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Closing Arguments by the Prosecution and the Defense
In the end, we still have a she says/he says case.   Both Ford and Kavanaugh spoke with passion and believability.  However, liars, con artists, people making wrong identifications, and deluded people can speak with believability and credibility.  Eyewitness testimony can be very compelling, but it also be very wrong.
In Kavanaugh’s favor, he had a written calendar that he kept at the time in which the Senate Judiciary Committee examined.  Ford refused to have notes she made as she sought psychological help to understand what happened and to recover her memory.  

Both may have been plastered at the time despite their self-serving statements that they were either sober or not that plastered as to have their memories impaired.
Ford claimed she had four witnesses that could support her testimony, but they only say she was of good character and did not witness what had happened. After thirty-five years, Ford was fuzzy on the facts such as time and place so it would be impossible for Kavanaugh to have witnesses to refute her.  
Bill Cosby, Jeff Epstein, and Harvey Weinstein had scores of women that accused them of inappropriate behavior and assault of a sexual nature.  During Harvey Weinstein’s trial in February 2020, two women came forward to defend him.  In Brett Kavanaugh’s case, one and possibly two women, Ford and Ramirez, could make a case of against him so he could not be described as a serial predator like Cosby, Epstein, and Weinstein. Unlike them, Kavanaugh had scores of women that came forward in his favor. They knew him as a boss, a boyfriend, a colleague, a classmate,  a comrade, a date, a friend, a hallmate, and/or a mentor.
The Judge:  Charging the Jury

If the Kavanaugh proceedings had been a regular trial, then Chief Justice John Roberts would have had to recuse himself because he would have been impacted by the outcome by having another justice in his ideological hue added to the US Supreme Court.
If this had been a regular trial, none of the Senators would have qualified as being impartial.  They would have had a vested interest in the outcome since this would reflect on their chances of re-election. Virtually all senators had made their minds up along partisan lines.  The few who considering straying from the party line were busy testing public opinion on how to vote.
If this had been a real jury, after voir dire, the jury would have been sequestered to avoid being prejudiced by the media traditional and untraditional, the social media, and public demonstrations.

If this had been a real court, the prosecution and defense would have been barred by the court testifying in the press in hopes that it would get back to the jury. On Fox News, Kavanaugh declared,"I had never sexually assaulted anyone, not in high school, not ever.  I've always treated women with dignity and respect."
If this had been a regular trial, the presiding judge might have admitted additional accusers such as Deborah Ramirez to be examined and cross-examined. 
A unified prosecution would have had a consistent strategy of calling up witnesses, eyewitnesses and character witnesses, to show that Ford was heroic while Kavanaugh was self-serving. If this had been a real trial, Christine Blasey Ford, as the accuser would have been better prepped by the prosecution to follow the prosecution’s strategy in a coordinated attack on Kavanaugh.  She did have a good team of lawyers helping her pro bono, but their interest was not necessarily her interest.  The prosecution would have presented any other evidence that might have survived. In the closing arguments, the prosecution would have summarized the evidence and testimony against Kavanaugh in a series of hammer blows leading to a grand climax:  Kavanaugh was guilty beyond a reasonable doubt and Ford deserved justice.
If this would have been a real trial, the prosecution would have followed the strategy of Rachel Mitchell in the Senate Judiciary Committee.  The prosecution would have sympathetically questioned Ford.  The prosecutor would draw out conflicting details in her background and presentation such as her alleged phobia for flying. The prosecution might even concede that Ford had been sexually assaulted, but she had identified the wrong person.  The defense counsel would have emphasized the fuzziness and inconsistence of Ford’s testimony that would have been the consequence of testifying about events that had taken place thirty-five yeas ago. The defense council would have questioned why Ford had altered the detailson her Facebook pages that showed she had been a critic of President Trump. The defense counsel would argue that partisanship, not justice, drove her to derail the nomination of Kavanaugh to the US Supreme Court.  In the closing arguments, the defense would have summarized the evidence and testimony for Kavanaugh in a series of hammer blows leading to a grand climax:  Kavanaugh was  not guilty beyond a reasonable doubt and he deserved justice. 
In charging the jury, the presiding judge would have explained: 1) that the US Constitution required that the prosecution prove the guilt of the accused, not that the accused had to prove his innocence, as Christine Blasey Ford and her supporters tried to do.  2) He or she would have explained that the jury would have to ignore the hidden issue that Brett Kavanaugh’s real crime was that he would become the deciding ideological vote on the US Supreme Court.  3) He would have explained the pros and cons of eyewitness testimony and that by itself might not be enough to convict despite the #MeToo’s movement that woman’s word should be taken at face value that something had happened to her.

If this had been a real jury, they would have debated the merits of the arguments of the prosecution and defense in private.  The senators did not have a chance to do this but I am sure being human beings a few here and there must have discussed it in private.
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The Popular Opinion:  The Polls

In the court of public opinion, the verdict was almost as equally close against Kavanaugh. In Ancient Athens, juries consisted of more than a thousand people, always ending in an odd number so there would be no tie vote.

Before the testimony by Dr. Ford and Judge Kavanaugh on September 27,  2018, “Kavanaugh's nomination is becoming a voting issue in November's midterm elections. More people say they are likely to vote for someone who opposes Kavanaugh's nomination than supports it by a 37 percent to 32 percent margin. A little more than a quarter (27 percent) say his nomination does not make any difference to their vote.
Most Republicans (54 percent) say they think Kavanaugh should be confirmed regardless of whether Ford's allegations are true, according to the poll.

While pluralities of both men (39 percent) and women (45 percent) are unsure who is telling the truth, among those who have a view on the question, there is notably a big gender gap. Thirty-two percent of men believe Kavanaugh and 28 percent believe Ford. Thirty-five percent of women believe Ford and 20 percent believe Kavanaugh. That's a 19-point gender gap, and the spread is even further apart by gender and party: Republican men overwhelmingly believe Kavanaugh (61 percent to 5 percent) and Democratic women believe Ford (56 percent to 4 percent).

Democratic men believe Ford by a 54 percent to 16 percent margin, and Republican women believe Kavanaugh by a 57 percent to 6 percent margin. A plurality of independent women believe Ford (38 percent to 16 percent).”https://www.npr.org/2018/09/26/651647131/poll-nearly-6-in-10-to-closely-watch-kavanaugh-ford-hearing-many-undecided-on-tr
After the hearings, support for Kavanaugh declined and people made up their minds. “Generally, Republicans are more in favor of confirming Kavanaugh and Democrats are more opposed — a polarization that increased in the wake of the sexual misconduct allegations. Polls show Americans who were previously undecided have taken a stance on Kavanaugh since the hearing, largely along party lines.”  Women were more likely to believe Ford than Kavanaugh at 47% to 41%.  Democrats were more likely to believe Ford over Kavanaugh and the vice versa for the Republicans.https://fivethirtyeight.com/features/a-final-look-at-where-voters-stand-on-kavanaugh-before-the-senate-votes/
In my humble opinion, people made up their minds on how they thought Kavanaugh would vote in the future, not on the credibility of the charges.
The Political Verdict:  The Senate Vote
Efforts were made to intimidate the moderate Republicans in voting against Kavanaugh, in particular, Senator Susan Collins, a moderate Republican, her family, and her staff in DC and in Maine suffered considerable harassment in various forms from vile emails to coat hangers, the symbol of abortion, to a white powder (suggesting anthrax) to threats of harm if she did not vote against the nomination of Kavanaugh.  One billionaire offered a million dollars to her re-election committee if she voted no and if she did not, an opponent would be funded instead—coming close to a bribe. Hearings at the Senate were constantly interrupted by the crazies and protestors in the Senate galleries.  
The political verdict was along party lines of 50 to 48.  The lone Republican vote against Kavanaugh was tied as a favor to a Senator in support of Kavanaugh as a courtesy because he was attending his daughter’s wedding.  The Republicans claimed vindication while the Democrats claimed there remained unanswered questions.
Whereas the liberal Ruther Bader Ginsberg was approved 96 to 3 in 1993, the conservative Brett Kavanaugh was approved 50 to 48 in an almost straight-line party vote in 2018.  Just as some people are still challenging the election of 2016, there are still people challenging the legitimacy of Clarence Thomas and Brett Kavanaugh to be sitting on the US Supreme Court and hence of validity of Supreme Court decisions.
Round Five: No Final Count Because It’s Never Over—The Perpetual Retrial
For some of Kavanaugh’s proponents, his vigorous defense was seen just more proof of how guilty he was.  Just as no Birther could be convinced that Obama was born in the USA, no opponent of Kavanaugh could be convinced that he had not engaged in inappropriate sexual behavior. 
Even after the confirmation, Democratic Senator Richard Blumenthal of Connecticut kept on going by filing a FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) lawsuit for KavanaughDemocratic Minority Leader, called for the House to conduct its own investigation even though the House of Representatives has no constitutional involvement in the confirmation process.  https://www.politico.com/story/2018/10/10/kavanaugh-faces-drip-drip-drip-on-records-892054
Thomas Jefferson had his minions in the House of Representatives impeach Associate Justice Samuel Chase.  To everyone’s surprise, Aaron Burr, his own vice president, as the judge in charge of the trial conducted proceedings fairly.  If Chase had been convicted, Chief Justice John Marshall would have been next.  If the opponents of Kavanaugh and Trump had gone that route, there would been nothing in the future for the Republicans to do payback when they regained control of both houses of Congress.
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The Democratic and Liberal Playbooks

Just as the Democrats have developed a playbook to prevent the nomination of any conservative to the US Supreme Court, the Republicans have developed their own in response.The liberals have their own playbook.
The Democratic playbook consists of the following 1) ideological attack 2) personal attack 3) sexual innuendos – information is leaked about a supposedly reluctant witness whose charges should be taken at face value without being questioned.  
The liberal playbook adds 1) automatic rejection of any candidate who is not a liberal 2) Public shaming of the nominee—in this instance,Brett Kavanaugh, his family, and those that supported him 3) unhinged and harassing attacks on the senators, their families and their staffs 4) smearing the nominee before the nomination such as being a sexual predator; 5)after the nomination, the continuous smearing of the confirmed justice as a sexual predator and incompetent who should be removed from the bench.6) A lobbying group brought a URL in preparation to attack the next nominee.  
Both playbooks can be summarized as how to “bork” since the Bork Supreme Court nomination.Despite both playbooks, the defense strategy of Kavanaugh’s defenders was superior to the prosecution strategy of his attackers.
Senator ThomTillis declared to Brett Kavanaugh, “You’re the first major target of a new strategy that's developed here. And I think you're right. I think it's just basically attack, attack, attack. It's not advise and consent; it's search and destroy.”  He was wrong that it was new.  It had been evolving since Senator Ted Kennedy had launched it.https://www.realclearpolitics.com/video/2018/09/27/sen_tillis_on_playbook_against_kavanaugh_future.html
Although the opposition was well-financed and was willing to go to any lengths, it was not centrally coordinated.  Throwing the mud of every possible charge, evidence, and testimony and hoping it will stick is not a strategy.  Like the Republicans, the Democrats should have delegated their questioning to a professional, a combined prosecutor of Kavanaugh and a defender of Ford. The questioning of Ford and the attack on Kavanaugh would have been enhanced by one person asking questions in a coordinated, consistent fashion.
The defense of Kavanaugh was centrally coordained by three advocacy groups in consultation with one another:  the White House team in support of the nomination, the Republican members of the Senate Judiciary Committee and of the Senate led by Senator Mitch McConnell, the Senate Majority leader, and the Federalist Society, the most important of the lobbying groups.  During the questioning of Dr. Christine Blasey Ford, the Republican members of the Senate Judiciary Committee, delegated their questioning to an experienced, sex crimes professional prosecutor, Rachel Mitchell.  She avoided the trap of making the alleged victim look more sympathetic by being sympathetic in her questioning and undermine her credibility by showing inconstancy in her testimony. Ford was questioned in a systematic fashion by Rachel Mitchell.  On the other hand, the individual Democratic Senators could not resist grandstanding by each having their turn at trying to show Kavanaugh guilty and they supported Ford.  

Determining the Facts:  Can We Reach a Verdict?
I am reminded of the Boston Massacre case in which John Adams, our future second president, defended British soldiers accused of the massacre of five colonists.  John Adams declared “Facts are stubborn things” while the presiding judge said the case should be decided on “real facts” and the guilty verdict should be “beyond a reasonable doubt.”

In the end, the Ford-Kavanaugh controversy remains a she said/ he said.  Despite the efforts to switch the way American courts conduct business, it was to Kavanaugh’s accusers to obligation to prove guilt beyond reasonable doubt, not Kavanaugh to prove his innocence beyond a reasonable doubt.  Of course, the Senate hearings was not a trial. 
In Scotland, a jury can issue one of three verdicts, guilty, innocent, and not proven.  In America, the accused still has the benefit of presumption of innocence.  The best that can be the Scottish third choice, not proven.  Furthermore, in my opinion there is not enough evidence to win a civil trial as in the case of the O. J. Simpson cases.
Conclusion
The PBS “Frontline” Program of “The Great Divide: From Obama to Trump” explains how the Republican Party became the part of no to legislation for the conservatives while “Ideology and Party Above Country and Justice: Review of Mollie Hemingway and Carrie Severino, Justice on Trial: The Kavanaugh Confirmation and the Future of the Supreme Court (Washington, DC, 2019) explains how the Democratic Party became the party of no to nominations for the liberals. Both sides blame the other for the current political impasse. You can go to the PBS website to read a summary of the four-hour two-part program and then you can watch both parts at your leisure. Hemingway and Severino show how Senator Ted Kennedy pioneered the Democratic playbook of personal and ideological attacks starting with Robert Bork, achieving fruition with Clarence Thomas in which there leaks of his supposedly harassing an aide.  The Democrats and liberals achieved perfection with the Kavanaugh hearings except that this time the Republicans and conservatives were prepared.  Just as no Republican was prepared to vote for legislation proposed by a Democratic president (pioneered by Senator Mitch McConnel and Representative Mike Pence), no Democratic will now ever vote for a Republican nominee for the Supreme Court. 
One thing for sure, whoever becomes the next nominee, not only will he or she face personal and ideological attacks but accusations that they were sexual predators.It would be a fatal assumption of any nominee to be expected to be treated fairly, that inquisitors are people of good faith, good intentions, and good will.There has never been a golden age of bipartisanship, but this age looks like we have managed to hit a new low.  Although Congressmen no longer duel each other and engage in fisticuffs on the floor, some of their more ardent opponents have taken potshots at them. They can’t even play a friendly game of baseball without someone trying to knock a few of them off.
It’s Not Over Until It’s Over

Brett Kavanaugh was welcomed by the entire US Supreme Court where he was sworn in as the newest Associate Justice in 2018.  However, this is still not the end of his tribulations.Nancy Pelosi did rule out impeachment if the Democrats won control of the House which they did in the next election.  However, in March 2020, Senator Chuck Schumer threatened Associate Justices Neil Gorsuch and Brett Kavanaugh with retaliation if they made decisions he did not like. Still others declared they would never accepted decisions by the US Supreme Court that involved Kavanaugh as the key vote because they still regarded his nomination as illegitimate. https://www.usatoday.com/story/opinion/todaysdebate/2020/03/05/chuck-schumer-threatening-rhetoric-gorsuch-kavanaugh-crosses-line-editorials-debates/4964578002/
